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Caleb Shipley, Jr. Farm
2400 Pfefferkorn Road
West Friendship vicinity
Howard County, Maryland
Private

c. 1850s

Description:

The Caleb Shipley, Jr. Farm is located about two miles west of West Friendship. Only the
house survives on the farm, and it faces southwest, with the road to the southeast of it. The
house is a two-story, five-bay by three-bay frame structure with a rubble stone foundation,
vinyl siding over weatherboards, and a gable roof with asphalt shingles and a northwest-
southeast ridge. There is an interior brick chimney on each gable end. The rear elevation has
a shed-roofed addition that continues the slope of the roof on the main block. On the
southwest elevation the first story has a center entrance with a new door, a five-light transom,
and three-light sidelights set over single panels. There is a three-bay, one-story porch
centered on the house, and it is set on CMU piers and has a half-hip roof with standing-seam
metal. Some of the walls were opened up to examine the construction of the building. The
west corner post is hewn and is guttered. The northeast addition corner posts are hewn and
are 4 inches by 6 1/2 inches, and are not guttered. The northeast elevation has an exterior
rubble stone chimney on the east bay. The basement was originally a crawl space under the
front half, which was excavated at a later date. There are three-quarter-round log joists that
have had major termite damage, with flooring and joists partially missing from various
sections of the first story. There is a crawl space under most of the rear addition. The house
is a center-passage, single-pile plan with a center-passage, single-pile addition on the rear,
creating a double-pile plan. The front passage has an open-stringer stairway on the southeast
with a turned newel that has a vasiform bottom. The house was scheduled for demolition in
September, 2007.

Significance:

The Caleb Shipley, Jr. Farm was formerly surveyed as the Richard V. Shipley Farm, and
though owned by Richard, it was built and lived in first by Caleb. Caleb Shipley, Sr. owned
over 285 acres mostly on the south side of Frederick Road and west of Pfefferkorn Road.
His will, written in 1855 and probated four years later, indicates that he had already arranged
for the distribution of his estate by 1855. Caleb’s son, Perry M. Shipley received Caleb’s
dwelling house, which was along Frederick Road, and another son, Caleb, Jr., received 91
1/4 acres that he was already occupying. The house was originally constructed as a center-
passage I-house with symmetrical architrave that has Greek Revival mouldings. The bold
urn-shaped newel post and round balusters of the stairway are more typical of the 1850s, but
are still very Greek. The framing of the house is interesting, since it uses hewn, guttered
corner posts. These were also seen at “Mount View,” about one mile to the east and built
probably in the 1840s or early ’50s. Thus, it would seem as though there was a carpenter in
the area who liked to use a building technology that had generally passed from usage 20 to
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30 years earlier. The house was basically doubled in size at a fairly early date, by adding a
single-pile center-passage plan section to the rear, with a shed roof on it. This section was
probably added by Caleb, Jr. as both his family and his income grew. By 1870 Caleb, Jr. had
increased his land holdings to 150 acres, 120 of them improved. After Caleb, Jr.’s death the
farm was sold to Richard Shipley, of unknown relation to Caleb, in 1878. The Shipleys seem
to have had a rather typical diverse family farm operation in the nineteenth century. Little
else can be gleaned from the records concerning Shipley until his sale of the farm in 1912, to

Ethelberta Hood.
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1. Name of Property (indicate preferred name)
historic Caleb Shipley, Jr. Farm
other Richard Shipley Farm
2. Location
street and number 2400 Pfefferkorn Road not for publication
city, town West Friendship X vicinity
county Howard
3. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)
name Cloverfield Holding Company
street and number 10705 Charter Drive, Ste 350 telephone
city, town Columbia state MD zip code 21044

4. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Howard County Courthouse

tax map and parcel: 15-4

city, town Ellicott City

liber 10691 folio

536

5. Primary Location of Additional Data

— Contributing Resource in National Register District

Contributing Resource in Local Historic District

Determined Eligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Determined Ineligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Recorded by HABS/HAER

Historic Structure Report or Research Report

Other

6. Classification

Category Ownership Current Function

B district _ public ___agriculture o Iandsca.tpe

X building(s) X private ~_commerce/trade re(?rgatlonfculture

~ structure ~ both _defensg - re!igton

 site L domes_tic social _

_ object ___education _ transpor‘tatlon
__ funerary ~ work in progress
___government unknown
___health care X vacant/not in use

__industry other:

Resource Count

Contributing  Noncontributing

1 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
1 0

buildings
sites
structures
objects
Total

Number of Contributing Resources
previously listed in the Inventory

1



7. Description Inventory No. ~ HO-870

Condition
_ excellent X deteriorated
_ good - ruins
fair ~ altered

Prepare both a one paragraph summary and a comprehensive description of the resource and its various elements as it
exists today.

The Caleb Shipley, Jr. Farm is located at 2400 Pfefferkorn Road, about two miles west of West Friendship, in north-central
Howard County, Maryland. Only the house survives on the farm, and it faces southwest, with the road to the southeast of it. The
house is a two-story, five-bay by three-bay frame structure with a rubble stone foundation, vinyl siding over weatherboards, and a
gable roof with asphalt shingles and a northwest-southeast ridge. There is an interior brick chimney on each gable end that corbels
in just above the ridge, with corbelled caps. The rear elevation has a shed-roofed addition that continues the slope of the roof on
the main block.

Exterior

On the southwest elevation the first story has a center entrance with a new door, a five-light transom, and three-light sidelights set
over single panels. The panels have sunken fields and quirked ogee and bevel panel moulds. There is new reeded trim added to
the side light mullions and transom bar, The muntins are all mortised and tenoned and pinned. The architrave is symmetrical, with
a quirked Greek ogee to each side and plain corner blocks. Flanking either side of the doorway are two windows with six-over-six
double hung sash in beaded-interior-edge frames that are mitered at the corners and have shutter hinges. There is a three-bay, one-
story porch set on CMU piers, with a tongue-and-grooved wood deck, squared boxed wood posts, a plain frieze, a boxed eave, and
a bead-board soffit. The porch is centered on the house and has a half-hip roof with standing-seam metal. The second story has
five typical six-over-six sash and a wood box cornice with returns.

Some of the walls were opened up to examine the construction of the building. The siding is sash-sawn, with a 3/4-inch half-lap at
the bottom of each board, and the siding is fastened with cut nails. The bottom two boards of the siding match the rest, but have
modern cut nails holding them in place that do not match the cut nails used in the rest of the siding. The southwest and northwest
sills have been replaces with 4 3/4-inch square circular-sawn timber, and it is set on bricks laid in Portland cement with shims on
the exterior face of the sill, at the bottom of the sill, to push out the bottom piece of siding so that it sits over the foundation wall.
The studs are toe-nailed to the sills now with a combination of cut and wire nails. The west corner post is hewn and is guttered,
and is 6 1/4 inches by 6 1/2 inches, with a 2 1/2-inch gutter. There are down braces that are mortised and tenoned and pegged to
the corner posts, and they are sash-sawn. The braces have marriage marks where the studs meet them, and the studs have the same
marks. The full-height studs also have marriage marks at the foot. The studs are sash-sawn and are toe-nailed to the brace with cut
nails. The studs are 3 inches by 4 inches. There is sash-sawn lath fastened to the studs. The northwest wall is constructed the same
way, and the wall was lathed and plastered before the brick fireplace was built. The baseboard does not go behind the fireplace,
however, and the back of the baseboard 1s sash-sawn. The braces are halved on their ends and set into center mortises and pegged.
The northeast sill is much rotted and appears to be the original, suggesting that the northeast addition was built before the sills were
replaced.

The northeast addition construction also has circular-sawn sills that are replacements, The corner posts are hewn and are 4 inches
by 6 1/2 inches, and are not guttered. The studs are sash-sawn, are 3 inches by 4 inches, and are spaced 24 inches on centers. The
down braces are also sash-sawn. The northeast elevation, north down brace appears to have a number one on it. The stud feet on
this elevation are numbered from north to east, but only the full height studs, as is done on the main block; the short studs beneath
the windowsills were not given marriage marks. The short pieces of studs beneath the down braces also were not given marriage
marks, while the longer pieces of studs on top of the braces were.

On the northwest elevation the north bay is an addition and the center and west bays are the main block. The weatherboards extend
across the main block and addition, and must have been put on when the addition was, replacing the original siding. There is a two-
light sash in the center bay of the foundation. The first story has two one-light casements in the north bay, a six-over-six sash in the
center bay, and no opening in the west bay. The second story has no openings in the north and west bays, and a six-over-six sash in
the center. The gable end has two small window openings, one of them converted to a vent,



Maryland Historical Trust Inventory No.  HO-870
Maryland Inventory of
Historic Properties Form

Name Caleb Shipley, Jr. Farm
Continuation Sheet

Number 7 Page 1

The northeast elevation has an exterior rubble stone chimney on the east bay that tapers in on three sides, with a rebuilt brick
chimney on top that was done when a new brick chimney was added to the northwest side. The east-center, north-center, and north
bays have six-over-six sash on the first and second stories. The center bay has a beaded-edge vertical-board door on the first story
and a six-over-six sash on the second story. There is a wood box cornice.

On the southeast elevation the foundation has a two-light sash in the south bay and rubble stone cheek walls and a cellar bulkhead
with wood door fragments in the center bay. The first story has nothing in the south bay, a six-over-six sash in the center, and a six-
over-nine sash in the east bay that is set lower. The second story has no opening in the south bay, a six-over-six sash in the center,
and a six-over-six sash in the east bay that is also set lower on the wall. The gable end has two windows, one of them converted to
a vent. The eave is boxed, and then wrapped in aluminum, with a Greek ogee mould.

Interior

The basement was originally a crawl space under the front half, which was excavated at a later date. There are three-quarter-round
log joists that have had major termite damage, with flooring and joists partially missing from various sections of the first story.
There is a crawl space under most of the rear addition, with log joists, some of which have been replaced with dimensional lumber

on the southeast end.

The house is a center-passage, single-pile plan with a center-passage, single-pile addition on the rear, creating a double-pile plan.
The front passage has an open-stringer stairway on the southeast with a turned newel that has a vasiform bottom. There are turned,
tapered balusters which have tool marks that indicate that they were shaved by hand. There is a three-quarter-round ramped
handrail that appears to be walnut. The stringer is plain. The baseboard has a broken field at the top, the architrave is symmetrical
with quirked Greek ovolos, and there are plain corner blocks. There is plain peg rail board on the northwest wall. The doors have
four panels with sunken fields and quirked ogee and bevel panel moulds, and identical panels are beneath the side lights. There is
a four-panel door at the rear, and another beneath the stairway, leading to a closet. The floor and the joists beneath it are seriously
deteriorated in this location, with large holes.

The southeast room has plain baseboard, architrave with a beaded interior edge that is mitered at the corners, and a fireplace that is
centered on the southeast elevation. The fireplace has splayed brick jambs and the back of the fireplace appears to be ashlar
soapstone blocks. There is no mantel and the fireplace was boarded over. On the northeast elevation is a door that leads to the

addition.

The northwest room has trim that is fastened with cut nails. The baseboard matches that in the passage and the architrave matches
that in the southeast room. There is a fireplace on the northeast elevation, with splayed brick jambs, and a wood mantel that is sash-
sawn and fastened with cut nails. The mantel has plain pilasters, a plain frieze, and broken impost blocks. The bed mould has a
bead at the top, two fillets beneath it, and a quirked Greek ogee and bead at the bottom. A chair rail has been added to this room,
with a quirked ogee and bevel moulding, and it is fastened with wire nails. The window sash have ovolo muntins and are mortised
and tenoned and pinned at the corners, and also where the muntins meet the top, bottom, and meeting rails. There are no parting
beads and plain meeting rails, with no spring latches or weights for the sash.

The addition northwest room has one step down into it, and has plain mitered trim and plain baseboard. The sash has ovolo
muntins and are mortised and tenoned and pinned at both the corners and the muntins. A closet was added to the south corner,
using drywall. The room has circa 1950’s metal kitchen cabinets. The addition passage has baseboard heat and paneling on the
walls. There is an enclosed stair on the southeast side that is set to the northeast, with a bathroom underneath of it on the northeast
end. The bathroom has a black and white check linoleum tile floor and a corner sink.

The addition southeast room has linoleum tile flooring, knotty pine paneling, and plain architrave on the windows. There is a
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fireplace on the northeast elevation that has straight stone jambs and a slightly arched top. Some of the stones were pulled out of

the top northwest jamb, probably when a crane was removed. There is a wood mantel shelf made with wire nails that appears to be
a reproduction. On the southwest elevation is a doorway with a beaded-interior-edge architrave that is mitered at the corners. The
wall on the northwest was built out into this room at the north half to enlarge the bathroom beneath the stairs, and there were doors

here leading to that bathroom.
The second story was not accessible due to deterioration of the stairway.

No other historic structures survive on the property at this time. The house was scheduled for demolition in September, 2007.



8. Significance Inventory No.  HO-870

Period Areas of Significance Check and justify below
___1600-1699 _ agriculture —__ economics _ health/medicine — performing arts
_1700-1799 ___ archeology — education industry _ philospohy
X 1800-1899 X architecture —__ engineering ___ invention — politics/government
_1900-1888 __  art _ entertainment/ landscape architecture ___ religion
___ 2000- ___ commerce recreation — law ___ science
_ communications ethnic heritage literature — social history
— community planning _—_ exploration/ — maritime industry __ transportation
— conservation settlement — military — other:
Specific dates N/A Architect/Builder  N/A
Construction dates c. 1852-58

Evaluation for:

National Register Maryland Register X not evaluated

Prepare a one-paragraph summary statement of significance addressing applicable criteria, followed by a narrative discussion of
the history of the resource and its context. (For compliance reports, complete evaluation on a DOE Form - see manual.)

The Caleb Shipley. Jr. Farm was formerly surveyed as the Richard V. Shipley Farm, and though owned by Richard, it was built
and lived in first by Caleb.

Caleb Shipley. Sr. owned over 285 acres mostly on the south side of Frederick Road and west of Pfefferkorn Road. His will,
written in 1855 and probated four years later, indicates that he had already arranged for the distribution of his estate by 1855,
Caleb’s son, Perry M. Shipley received Caleb’s dwelling house, which was along Frederick Road, and another son, Caleb, Jr.,
received 91 1/4 acres that he was already occupying. The division of all this land is shown in a plat that was included with
Caleb, Sr.’s will. The tax records for Caleb, Jr. begin in 1852, suggesting that that was when he began farming on part of his
father’s land. They do not contain sufficient detail in this instance to determine when the house may have been built on the
property, but it was probably around the same time that Caleb started farming it. (1)

The house was originally constructed as a center-passage I house with symmetrical architrave that has Greek Revival mouldings.
The bold urn-shaped newel post and round balusters of the stairway are more typical of the 1850s, but are still very Greek. Only
the four-panel doors with ogee-and-bevel panel moulds are very suggestive of the [talianate mode that would supplant the Greek
Revival, making this a conservative farmhouse. The framing of the house is interesting, since it uses hewn, guttered corner
posts. These were also seen at “Mount View,” about one mile to the east and built probably in the 1840s or early *50s. Thus, it
would seem as though there was a carpenter in the area who liked to use a building technology that had generally passed from
usage 20 to 30 years earlier. Roman numeral marriage marks were placed on the exterior faces of all of the studs and braces.
The fireplaces were constructed inside of the frame, with the walls actually plastered before the brickwork was laid up. The
house was basically doubled in size at a fairly carly date, by adding a single-pile center-passage plan section to the rear, with a
shed roof on it. This section has 4 by 8 corner posts buried in the walls, but the framing is otherwise very similar to the original
section and was probably added by Caleb, Jr. as both his family and his income grew.

The farm does not show up on the 1860 Martenet map, but according to the 1860 agricultural census, Caleb, Jr. had 70 acres
improved and 18 acres unimproved, with six horses, five milch cows and two other cattle, and 16 hogs. His crops included
wheat, rye, corn, and oats. By 1870 Caleb, Jr. had increased his land holdings to 150 acres, 120 of them improved. His livestock
had decreased, as had his production of wheat and rye, but corn and oats had increased. After Caleb, Jr.’s death the farm was
sold to Richard Shipley, of unknown relation to Caleb, in 1878. At that time the farm was described as 75 2/3 acres. Of these,
55 acres were tilled in 1880 and 20 acres were wooded. Shipley had 27 acres in meadow, of which 12 were mowed, producing 10
tons of hay. Five acres were in apple orchard (50 trees) and two acres in peach orchard (100 trees), and there was a one-acre
nursery which was unusual for most farms. Shipley had 15 acres in corn and another 15 in wheat. Not surprisingly, since he
was just starting out, he had fewer livestock than Calvin. These included two horses and two milch cows, with two calves
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dropped, plus five hogs and 24 poultry in the barnyard. The tax records, however, paint a slightly different picture. It is not
clear whether the assessment for Shipley was made in 1876, with all of the others, or added shortly afterward, as the deed would
suggest, since Shipley could have taken possession of the farm before he had completely paid for it and received title. The latter
is suggested by the fact that Richard Shipley’s farm is included on the 1878 Hopkins Atlas. The assessment states that he had
100 acres, with four horses, five cattle, and seven hogs. The discrepancy in cattle and hogs could certainly be due to the time of
the year that the assessment and census were made (before or after slaughtering), but the difference in horses would be harder to
explain. In any case, the Shipleys seem to have had a rather typical diverse family farm operation in the nineteenth century. (2)

Around 1880 Richard Shipley sold off 23 acres for unknown reasons. Little else can be gleaned from the records concerning
Shipley until his sale of the farm in 1912. At that time he retained a life estate, and was responsible for minor repairs while
having full use of the property. The farm was sold to Ethelberta Hood, who was responsible for major upkeep on the buildings.
Most likely, Hood was the daughter or niece of Shipley, and this was a way to transfer the property ahead of his death. In 1921
Hood sold the farm to Annie and Nicholas Ward, and three years later they sold to Charles and Ruth Thompson. The farm was
being developed in 2007 and the house was scheduled to be demolished in September. At that time it was in terrible condition
due to significant termite damage to flooring, trim, and stairs.

Notes:

(1). Caleb Shipley, Sr. Estate, Will WG/TBH 1-435, Register of Wills, Howard County Circuit Court, Maryland State Archives.
Howard County Commissioners, Transfer Book, 1841-51, Caleb Shipley, Jr., 1852, Maryland State Archives.

(2). Simon J. Martenet, Martenet’s Map of Howard County, Maryland (Baltimore, 1860).
U. S. Bureau of the Census, Agricultural Census, District 3, Howard County, Maryland, 1860, 1870, 1880. G. M. Hopkins,
Atlas of Howard County, Maryland (Philadelphia, 1878). Howard County Commissioners of the Tax, Assessment, District 3,

1876-96, Maryland State Archives,



9. Major Bibliographical References Inventory No. HO-870

See continuatronrsheet, foofrores,

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of surveyed property 15 834 acres

Acreage of historical setting 91 1/4 acres
Quadrangle name Sykesville Quadrangle scale _ 1:24000

Verbal boundary description and justification

The boundaries consist of all of the property on map 15, p. 4, which encompasses all of the historic structures.

11. Form Prepared By

nameftitle Ken Short

organization ‘Howard County Dept. of Planning & Zoning d_ate 2/19/2008
street and number 3430 Courthouse Drive - _ telephone  410-313-4335
city or town Ellicott City state MD Zip code 21043

The Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties was officially created by an Act of the Maryland
Legislature to be found in the Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974
supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and record purposes only and do
not constitute any infringement of individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
DHCD/DHCP
100 Community Place
Crownsville MD 21032
410-514-7600



Iy &oo Pleflerkarn RA HO- 27O
. r\om\c}\'u\a, Protite s

S
/ / | / / / 3

- 4 / P # A
i 5 ’ )
_/'/ - ~

rd

No Y ”"G—S'j"
R
Manrle {

Re &

Prssage Avclkidtra e

. \
g ¥ N

KiHS



Caleb Shipley, Jr. Farm (HO-870)

2400 Pfefferkorn Road
CHAIN OF TITLE
GRANTOR/HOME GRANTEE/HOME DATE LIBER/ INSTRU- CONSIDER ACREAGE NOTES
FOLIO MENT -ATION
on the west side of Rover
Charles H. Thompson and Road (Pfefferkorn Road).
Ruth Thompson/Howard Robert Thomas Matthews 5.30.1956 284-398 Deed $5.00 445 A Reserving Annie Ward the
Co. right to live there until she
died. She died in 1942.
M. Annie Ward and
Nictislas 5. ‘Ward Charles H. Thompson 4.28.1924 120-222 Deed $5.00 445 A
M.' Auaic Ward gnd Laura Ethelberta Hood 9.30.1921 113-418 Mortgage $4,000 445 A
Nicholas Ward
Laura Ethelberta Hood and $5,000:
B. Mifflin Hood, her 2 $1,000 cash
. ! .30. 113- ? .
A, it RICKFV M. Annie Ward 9.30.1921 3-416 Deed and $4,000 445 A
Shipley mortgage
Richard V. Shipley reserved for
himself for his natural life
possession of the land and
premises conveyed for his
$2,200 and proper use and benefit, and he
s . a $100 keeping up meanwhile the trivial
Richard V. Shipley/Howsnd L. Ethelberta Hood 7.19.1912 \:3“;155 De?d _] T annuity for 445 A repairs of buildings and using
Co. - SIpIE life timber judiciously for making
$2.220 such repairs and for firewood
only for himself and tenant and
Eltheberta Hood keeping up the
larger necessary repairs of the
buildings and fences.
Elmon A. Shipley, et al /
Baltimore City . .
; W -
e gll:i:hla::rdf;oward 4291878 | oo | Denpe | 52300 Ak | B e e
Caleb Shipley, Jr. /Howard piey P P
. . Wills N
Caleb Shipley, Sr. Caleb Shipley, Jr. WG 1 Bequest Lot 1 on plat in wills WG 1-435
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NOTES:

A. FRAMING ROTTEN, MARRIAGE MARK LOST.

B. SILLS REPLACED.

C. ADDITION NOT SHOWN.

D. BRICK FIREPLACE EXPOSED BEHIND LATH AND BASEBOARD.
E. WINDOW OPENINGS.

HO-870 CALEB SHIPLEY, JR. FARM 2400 PFEFFERKORN ROAD

PARTIAL ELEVATION AND PLAN OF NORTHWEST AND SOUTHWEST ELEVATIONS SHOWING MARRIAGE MARKS
FRAMING EXPOSED BY STEVE ROLLS AND KEN SHORT -- MEASURED AND DRAWN BY KEN SHORT -- SEPTEMBER 2007
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Third Disriet,
BLACKSMITH.

J. T. ISAAC,
Blacksmith in General,
Woodstock, Howard Ca.

20 _,tes and Ca on hand and Built
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Richard Shipley Farm

HO-870

2400 Pfefferkorn Road, West Friendship
Howard County

ca. 1863

Private

The Richard Shipley Farm is a 44.5-acre farm that consists of a ca. 1863 farmhouse, the stone foundation
of a springhouse, a mid-20th century springhouse, and an altered late -19th century outhouse/shed. The
farm is located on the west side of Pfefferkorn Road, which is a Scenic Road, in western Howard County,
Maryland. The farmhouse faces southwest and is set in a yard with mature trees surrounded by cultivated
fields with a woodlot at the back of the property. The farm is going to be developed with single-family
suburban houses, the farm buildings will be demolished, and portions of the woodlot will be removed for

house lots and roadways.

The farmhouse at the Richard Shipley Farm is a two-story, five-bay, wood-frame, end-gable house set on
a stone cellar in deteriorated condition. The farmhouse has a saltbox form consisting of the main section
of the house with a shed-roofed extension across the back. The vernacular house has no visible
ornamentation, but its symmetrical five-bay form allies the house most strongly with the Federal style,
which extended into to mid-19th century in rural areas. The house has three chimneys: two end-gable
interior brick chimneys and one exterior stone and brick kitchen fireplace chimney. The house retains
wood six-over-six sash, a wood porch (now enclosed), front door sidelights and transom, and back door
with transom. The house is now sheathed with aluminum siding and the roof is covered with asphalt

shingles.

The Richard Shipley Farm is significant as an intact farmstead, consisting of ca. 1863 farmhouse, a stone
springhouse foundation, a mid-20th c. springhouse, and a ca. 1900 outhouse/shed, which represents the
historic rural, agricultural character of Howard County. The farm's highly picturesque landscape consists
of a farmhouse yard with mature trees and shrubs and wooded lowland, surrounded by cultivated fields,
and backed by a woodlot. The farmhouse, although in deteriorated condition, is a minimally altered and
well-proportioned example of Howard County's mid-19th century wood-frame farmhouses. The stone
foundation and kitchen chimney are especially well executed. The farm gains additional significance

from its association with the Shipley family, which is one of Howard County's founding families.



Maryland Historical Trust Inventory No. HO-870
Maryland Inventory of
Historic Properties Form

1. Name of Property (indicate preferred name)
historic Richard Shipley Farm (Site)
other n/a

2. Location

street and number 2400 Pfefferkorn Road __not for publication
city, town West Friendship __ vicinity
county Howard County

3. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Robert T. Matthews Trust
street and number 2400 Pfefferkorn Road telephone 410-489-7334
city, town West Friendship state Maryland zip code 21794

4. Location of Legal Description
courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Howard County Land Records liber 7029 folio 665

city, town Ellicott City tax map 15 tax parcel 4 tax ID number 03-290832

5. Primary Location of Additional Data

Contributing Resource in National Register District

Contributing Resource in Local Historic District

Determined Eligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Determined Ineligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Recorded by HABS/HAER

Historic Structure Report or Research Report at MHT

Other:

6. Classification

Category Ownership Current Function Resource Count

_ district ____ public _ X __agriculture ___ landscape Contributing Noncontributing

__ X building(s) X _ private ____commerce/trade ___ recreation/culture 1 0 buildings

_ X structure ____ both _____defense _____religion 1 0 sites

__ X _site __ X _domestic _____social | | structures

object ___education ___ transportation 0 0 objects
_ funerary ___ work in progress 3 1 Total
government ___unknown

____health care X _vacant/not in use Number of Contributing Resources
____industry __ other: previously listed in the Inventory

0



7. Description Inventory No. HO-870

Condition
__excellent x__deteriorated
___good ____ruins
fair x__ altered

Prepare both a one paragraph summary and a comprehensive description of the resource and its various elements as it
exists today.

Introduction

The Richard Shipley Farm is a 44.5-acre farm that consists of a ca. 1863 farmhouse, the stone foundation of a springhouse, a mid-20th
century springhouse, and an altered late -19th century outhouse/shed. The farm is located on the west side of Pfefferkorn Road, which
is a Scenic Road, in western Howard County, Maryland. The farmhouse faces southwest and is set in a yard with mature trees
surrounded by cultivated fields with a woodlot at the back of the property. The farm is going to be developed with single-family
suburban houses, the farm buildings will be demolished, and portions of the woodlot will be removed for house lots and roadways.

Farmhouse (ca. 1863)

The farmhouse at the Richard Shipley Farm is a two-story, five-bay, wood-frame, end-gable house set on a stone cellar in deteriorated
condition. The farmhouse has a saltbox form consisting of the main section of the house with a shed-roofed extension across the back.
The vernacular house has no visible ornamentation, but its symmetrical five-bay form allies the house most strongly with the Federal
style, which extended into to mid-19th century in rural areas. The house has three chimneys: two end-gable interior brick chimneys
and one exterior stone and brick kitchen fireplace chimney. The house retains wood six-over-six sash, a wood porch (now enclosed),
front door sidelights and transom, and back door with transom. The house is now sheathed with aluminum siding and the roof is
covered with asphalt shingles.

Only the cellar interior was accessible; the house was, until recently, heavily infested with termites and the building is structurally
unsound. A brief look into the 1st floor indicated that the house has a center passage, hall and parlor plan in the main section of the
house with a shed extension across the back of the house. The 1st floor joists are hewn and appear to have been reused from an earlier
structure: joints from the earlier use are visible.

The Richard Shipley farmhouse faces southwest. The primary (south) facade has five bays and is symmetrical about its entry bay.
Window openings are vertically aligned and graduated. The primary entry configuration is comprised of a door opening, flanked by
sidelights and topped by a transom (the front door has been replaced). A wood porch with metal hipped roof and concrete piers
projects from the primary facade and encloses the center three bays of the 1st story. The porch has square posts with simple capitals
and is now enclosed with wood and aluminum.

The west (side) end gable facade has a compound roofline that reflects the main section of the house and shed extension across the
back of the house. The main section of the house has a vertically aligned window openings at the cellar, 1st story, and 2nd stories
located south of ridgeline. The 1st and 2nd story window openings are graduated. A pair of attic openings flanks the chimney, which
have lost their original infill (one now encloses a single-pane window and the other a recent louver). The shed extension has one,
added, square, 1st story kitchen window opening.

The rear (north) facade has four bays. The elevation is asymmetrically arranged with three bays located in the western half of the
facade and one bay and the massive kitchen chimney located in the eastern half. Window openings are vertically aligned and are the
same size. There are no cellar openings in the stone foundation. A small, recent, metal back porch projects from the rear facade
outside the back door. The stone kitchen chimney has two brick stacks; presumably the larger stack is the fireplace stack and the
smaller is the stove stack.

The east (side) end gable facade has a compound roofline that reflects the main section of the house and shed extension across the
back of the house. The main section of the house has a vertically aligned window openings at the 1st story, and 2nd stories with a
bulkhead cellar entry located south of ridgeline. The 1st and 2nd story window openings are graduated. A pair of attic openings
flanks the chimney, which have lost their original infill (one now encloses a single-pane window and the other a recent louver). A
two-light cellar window is located north of the chimney. The shed extension has vertically aligned window openings in the 1st and
2nd stories. The 1st story window opening is elongated and holds six-over-nine sash.



Maryland Historical Trust
Maryland Inventory of inventory No. HO-870
Historic Properties Form

Name
Continuation Sheet

Number _7 Page 1

Springhouse foundation

The remnants of a dry-laid stone foundation is located northeast of the house. A spring rises through the ground in the center of the
foundation. Although this feature cannot be dated through construction technology, Robert Matthews, the most recent long-term
owner of the farm, posted a sign on the foundation labeled "Spring c. 1795", which may have been derived from oral sources.

Springhouse (ca. 1960s)
A CMU springhouse, that appears to have been constructed by Robert Matthews, is located immediately northwest of the older stone

springhouse foundation. The springhouse has a roof of corrugated metal sheets and encloses a cylindrical, concrete cistern.

Outhouse/shed (ca. 1900)

A small, wood shed-roofed structure is located northwest of the house at the edge of the yard. The structure has the size and form of
an outhouse, but is not set on a foundation and was last used for storage.

Landscape
The Richard Shipley farm is set in a significant landscape that is representative of western Howard County's rural character. An

unpaved drive curves back from Pfefferkorn Road past the primary facade of the house and loops around a mature tree. The house is
set in a lawn dotted with specimen trees. A brick walk edged with boxwoods leads from the drive to the front door. A walk edged
with shrubs and concrete landscape features leads from the back door to the spring. The springhouse is set in wooded lowland with
mature trees and a dense understory. Cultivated fields surround the building complex and yard, and an established woodlot edges the

back of the farmland.



8. Significance

Inventory No. HO-870

Period Areas of Significance Check and justify below
__1600-1699 x_ agriculture ___ economics __ health/medicine __ performing arts
__1700-1799 __ archeology __ education __ industry __ philosophy
x_ 1800-1899 x_ architecture ___engineering ___invention __ politics/government
x_ 1900-1999 __art __ entertainment/ __ landscape architecture __ religion
___2000- __ commerce recreation _law __science
___ communications __ ethnic heritage __ literature __ social history
__ community planning  __ exploration/ __ maritime history __ transportation
___conservation settlement __ military __ other:
Specific dates ca. 1863 Architect/Builder unknown
Construction dates  ca. 1863

Evaluation for:

National Register Maryland Register X not evaluated

Prepare a one-paragraph summary statement of significance addressing applicable criteria, followed by a narrative discussion of the
history of the resource and its context. (For compliance projects, complete evaluation on a DOE Form — see manual.)

Significance
The Richard V. Shipley Farm is significant as an intact farmstead, consisting of ca. 1863 farmhouse, a stone springhouse foundation, a

mid-20th c. springhouse, and a ca. 1900 outhouse/shed, which represents the historic rural, agricultural character of Howard County.
The farm's highly picturesque landscape consists of a farmhouse yard with mature trees and shrubs and wooded lowland, surrounded
by cultivated fields, and backed by a woodlot. The farmhouse, although in deteriorated condition, is a minimally altered and well-
proportioned example of Howard County's mid-19th century wood-frame farmhouses. The stone foundation and kitchen chimney are
especially well executed. The farm gains additional significance from its association with the Shipley family, which is one of Howard
County's founding families.

Ownership History
The Richard V. Shipley Farm was constructed on property that was passed down through the Shipley family. The Shipleys are one of

Howard County's founding families and the extended family had broad and valuable property holdings. In 1860, the Caleb Shipley Jr.
family - Caleb (aged 46), Amy (aged 46), Richard (aged 23), Ethelbert (aged 20), Luke (aged 18), Alvina (aged 16), Eleanora (aged
14), Luther (aged 5) and Sallie (aged 15) - owned a farm in the Glenwood area.' In 1870, Caleb Shipley (aged 56) lived with son
Richard (aged 32) - a laborer, Luke (aged 27) - a doctor, Alvinia (aged 25) - who kept house, Eleanora (aged 23) - a domestic, Luther
(aged 15), and Isabella Warfield (aged 16) -their domestic servant. By then the value of their real estate had grown to $8000.00.%

In 1878, the heirs of Caleb Shipley, Ir. transferred the property associated with Richard V. Shipley Farm to Richard Shipley, the eldest
son of Caleb Shipley, Jr. The house appears to predate the death of Caleb Shipley, Jr. and it is not known for whom the house was
built, Richard and his wife Mary remained at the house as late as 1910, when the residents consisted of Richard Shipley (aged 73), his
wife Mary (aged 73), their adopted daughter Grace Allen (aged 23) - a public school teacher, and Millie Dorsey (aged 17), their
African-American cook.” In 1912, Richard Shipley sold the property to L. Ethelberta Hood with life tenancy and an annuity for
himself. Laura Ethelberta Hood was to be Richard Shipley's niece who was married to a prominent brick and tile manufacturer. The
Hoods lived in Inman Park in Atlanta in the 20th century and B. Mifflin Hood had manufactories throughout the south (salvaged Hood
roofing tiles are still highly sought after). In 1921, Laura Ethelberta Hood, B. Mifflin Hood, and Richard Shipley sold the farm to M.
Annie Ward for $5000.00. Annie Ward and her husband, Nicholas, were an elderly farm couple. In 1920, Nicholas Ward (aged 71)
lived with Annie (aged 66) and an adopted son William (aged 10).* In 1924, Ms. Ward and her husband, Nicholas, sold the property
to Charles H. Thompson. In 1920, Charles H. Thompson (aged 22) lived next door to the Wards on a family farm with his parents

'Department of Commerce — Bureau of the Census, Eighth Census of United States: 1860, Population Schedule, 3rd Election District, Page
30.

? Department of Commerce — Bureau of the Census, Ninth Census of United States: 1870, Population Schedule, 3rd Election District, Pa ge 41.

g Department of Commerce — Bureau of the Census, Thirteenth Census of United States: 1910, Population Schedule, E.D. 53, Sheet SA.

s Department of Commerce — Bureau of the Census, Fourteenth Census of United States: 1920, Population Schedule, E.D. 60, Sheet 1B.



Maryland Historical Trust
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Continuation Sheet

Number _8 Page 1

Charles E. Thompson (aged 53) and Amanda Thompson (aged 55) and sister Edna Thompson (aged 18).> He was also the census
enumerator. The current owner, Robert Thomas Matthews, purchased the farm from Mr. Thompson and his wife, Ruth, in 1956. Bob

Matthews died in 2004,

8 Department of Commerce — Bureau of the Census, Fourteenth Census of United States: 1920, Population Schedule, E.D. 60, Sheet 1B and
2A.,



9. Major Bibliographical References Inventory No. HO-870

Department of Commerce — Bureau of the Census. Census of United States: Population Schedule, 1860, 1870, 1900, 1910,
1920, 1930.
Foster, Gerald. American House: A Field Guide to the Architecture of the Home. Boston, New York: Houghton Mifflin
Company, 2004
Hopkins, G.M. Atlas of Howard County, Maryland, 1878. Ellicott City, MD: Howard County Bicentenial Commission, Inc.,
1975.
Howard County Land Records, Dorsey Building, Columbia. See attached chain of title for specific libers and folios.

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of surveyed property 44.5 acres
Acreage of historical setting 75 2/3 acres
Quadrangle name Sykesville Quadrangle scale: 1:24.000

Verbal boundary description and justification
The boundary follows that of Map 15, Grid 8, Parcel 4, which is the farm's current legal lot.

11. Form Prepared by

nameftitle Jennifer Goold, Historic Sites Surveyor

organization Howard County Department of Planning & Zoning date November 16, 2004
street & number 3430 Courthouse Drive telephone  410-313-4335

city or town Ellicott City state Maryland

The Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties was officially created by an Act of the Maryland Legislature
to be found in the Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,
1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and record purposes only
and do not constitute any infringement of individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
DHCD/DHCP
100 Community Place
Crownsville, MD 21032-2023
410-514-7600
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Lanier, Gabrielle M. and Bernard L. Herman. Everyday Architecture of the Mid-Atlantic. Baltimore: The Johns Hopkins Press,
1997,

McCalester, Virginia and Lee. A Field Guide to American Houses. New York: Alfred A. Knopf, 2004.



Richard V. Shipley Farmhouse

HO-870

2400 Pfefferkorn Road, West Friendship

Howard County
CHAIN OF TITLE
GRANTOR GRANTEE DATE | LIBER | FOLIO | TRANS. PRICE ACREAGE COMMENTS
Charles H. Robert 05-30- 284 398 Deed $5.00 44.5 A lot of land lying on the west side of Rover Road (Pfefferkorn Road).
Thompson and Ruth Thomas 1956 Being the same land and improvements conveyed from Elmon A.
Thompson (Howard Matthews Shipley, et al, to Richard V. Shipley dated April 29, 1878 and
County) beginning for the same to include a woodlot deed to Richard Shipley
from Joweph T. Shipley and wife dated April 29, 1878. Being the
same lot conveyed to Charles Thompson by M. Annie Ward and
Nicholas Ward reserving Annie Ward the right to live there until she
died. She died in 1942.
M. Annie Ward and Charles H. 04-28- 120 222 Deed 5.00 44.5
Nicholas H. Ward Thompson 1924
M. Annie Ward and Laura 09-30- 113 418 Mortgage 4000.00 44.5
Nicholas Ward Ethelberta 1921
Hood
Laura Ethelberta M. Annie 09-30- 113 416 Deed 5000.00: 44.5
Hood and B. Mifflin Ward 1921 1000.00 cash
Hood, her husband, and 4000.00
and Richard V. mortgage
Shipley
Richard V. Shipley L. Ethelberta | 07-19- 93 322 Deed 2200.00 and a 44.5 Richard V. Shipley reserved for himself for his natural life possession
(Howard County) Hood 1912 $100 annuity of the land and premises conveyed for his proper use and benefit, and
for life he keeping up meanwhile the trivial repairs of buildings and using
timber judiciously for making such repairs and for firewood only for
himself and tenant and Elthelberta Hood keeping up the larger
necessary repairs of the buildings and fences.
Elmon A. Shipley Richard V. 04-29- 39 357 Deed 2300.00 752/3 Elmon A. Shipley etal: Elmon A. Shipley and S. A. Shipley, his wife
etal. (Baltimore City) Shipley 1878 acres (Baltimore City) Ethelbert E. Shipley and Laura D. Shipley, his wife
(Howard and Luke M Shipley and Annie E. Shipley, his wife, and John H. Stier
County) and Alvina Stier, his wife, and James R. Stier and Elenora Stier, his
wife and Luther W. Shipley (by his authorized attoney, Erhelbert
Shipley) of New Mexico Territory; heirs of Caleb Shipley, Jr.,
deceased. Property devised to Caleb Shipley Jr. by Caleb Shipley.

1of1

1/5/05




Richard Shipley Farm (HO-870)
2400 Pfefferkorn Road

Howard County, Maryland

Site Plan 1 of 2
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Richard Shipley Farm (HO-870)
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1878 Hopkins Atlas




¥ )
o
o

A =g

; /d‘—\:/‘]\ A -.‘ = : .
s r/ TN

III/—" e ol fe
J o | y

4 4
2 / 25
’ ! e == < A
¥ = L ¥ ;. | A
= ! e - S | for Y Ao
= - . {1 . ¥ ) o Mo A\
> Y - [ L5 Vel y i
el i\ & PN / + ] o i 5 ; 3 =
[f .—\_{'\\_ i i N7 N 1 ey Sy =/ [ |
Shes —d £ \ - ey . gz N | e r
/ L o -y P = e a ) - Pl
s | 3 3 o 9. S i | T N : i CE ) g il % \ b,
. ’ - 4 Q 1 B e o \"7 %\
y 9 — el e YT \ ! 4 N =R VoA RN _
o , “ sE agNy o - { Y % T e e = ., v
. N o - . =N | Rl Y N Pud e A < p |
— L e——— { N, = ) TR ) NN e g . e (Al o ~
— N — e e e L= L ok s \ HETNE L E

/"‘-\.V
NTE
4

Richard Shipley Farm (HO-870)

2400 Pfefferkorn Road

West Friendship, Howard County
C USGS Sykesville Quad







Ho- & 70

ﬁl'(ll/\a :'fjl 2 jp_f f ok vis
HOWO\VL‘S Counbu v UMD

o ey Goold
Ochdtoev , 2oof
ubD SHPO

Show s Four mhouze M SekHh o -irﬂ'ox\.r\ helds <outn ot huse,

A QCPPA> BB 9-N N T- 2121 T6G
V1o DY T G96< B2 -ON>  T195- Lo
boy V1






Ho- 7O

Richoyd ij,'\pl@(j Fiew vin
Howa v d Counhj. HUD
Joumber boold
Ockovey 204

H.H €H PO

iew wesk Shows Yo wthowss by SR Y-

., : ] 43S N V‘L‘_V’}DV—{UF ' = y _N.N :E“ 2AT2T 160G
lu sef4 i.ﬂ;‘-:’ﬁf- SLON>  FI9T-laM

l'lo? 1) d.

Dm‘&au







Ho— ©lo
¢ vond S\/\\F f"j Fax w

Howavd Covnpy MD
- d
&V\V\-’\j({,'\/ (ool J:

Ochovev, Lo2 T
Ejf*bt-'ELl IT S-M M - ATAT 885

MDSH?O 18a< *3 "ON> TI9Z-1ad

\}'\(”J wl sy, ;“ YIS ’\.M W\\/WWQQ )

oy 17

G
@
S \






HD" &0

p\ld/lavd &@QJ o i
Howar 4 Couw.;%! e
Jnniley ¢ eo'd
Odrvoayr | oo

a @CEEas ©F ©-N M T- 2121 896G
Mo Sneo ATa< # "ON> T197—lad

Viw 08t . %\/‘-DWC 1Cav M guse
: Aoy \1







Ho- ©D1o
Q»\d/k&wﬂ g/\i( P\elj F& v WA
Howavd Coup %{J o

l'! ) .. ( I
‘_‘__k,’.f.lr'.( 'JJJ oA

Ockten . 7 ooH
BCPEAr ZZ-F-N N T- 2121 865
MD AP0 8U8< £ CON> 192l

\/WN CJBUW. %\qowe rcu mihov s@ .
- bl 17






Ho-Q To
P\-'..f/{/"-.a{ J 314\\063 (o. v o

H W vd (J Uik , MD
Jeuiden boo!d
0oy, 20

MD SO

!‘\}\Quu ot Showe f(()m:’mui",

b oy ]

St 1S-G-N N T- LT4T 166G
9cH< 82 "0MN> 1192134

2

[




R

-




Ho- ®o
P\{ thard On P2 Lo s

HOV\/O\;,-d1 (!‘__‘. ) f“’-"{r D

By Goold

Octotgy, InoH

UD SHPO
View goothwesk. Slowa detal % k(tCuen b ey,

Ty

St NN M N - ATAT 865
LO8< £ 0N PI2E-1a







Ho—@’“’

Richasd S plew Sov vy
HOWCM/d Cowmj D
Jenid v Goold
vy Lo0t]

MO QU

View vt Saaw s det| o) fi gtz

B oF I

BCEEAx FS SN M T- AT2ATF 165
148< 92 0ON>  TI192- 1Y






Ho- 870

F'if),IJ {}“Fﬁeﬁﬁ Ybﬁ,yw

HC%OS.'C‘ Cov by  MD

\'@lﬂ.ﬁ.nl.’\&_’,u/ ')OO[J

OQ&DbC,v | 1o

MD 24P
View novthest | Shoye delbar o bl
Soi’%\(é i cellow .

IOQh 1

Gbar T2 S-N N I—- 2741 TS5
6F0< S8 On: F192-1ad







Ypo- 679

Rl 6hfp(ﬁj B i
Howawd COvahg, MD
Jenpiey  Goold
Ockortr | 2004

MO  9HFO

@it 92 - N T- ATLT 166
16HC 92 -0ON> TI92-13d

View povrhwes.  4ows dedil o fygpdation Shopens 4

A0 1






Ho- B0

¢&CL1QNWJ EQVI{FJij {E;;.f?.
Howavd  Coyphy,mD
Jenniter (oold

Ockotcr | 72004 |
BCEFO> $T P-N N T- 27121 16S
CO9H< CEON:  TI95-Lad
MD SHPO
View. worthensk.  Shows ZivinaWpus \nsetas
\2 o0 17

P A






Ho- ©710

Richand 81/1"@7\?5} tov

Howou d C{JULA(’L),MD

Jouni s ool d

Ockoley, 200

MR SHFPO Ol < ra Ol T 150
View yetha, % we detail of jyind hewr

00\"6 fn celin |

\Hoh V1






Ho-9770
Riemavd W plew Yo wn

-

Howowd Govny, ¥
Od Do Yoo o

MP SH™0 O<HPA> 6T b-N N ¥- 2121 165
- 898< F2-ON>  T19Z-1ad

ca Lt , (
\\ Q) ot ChoW Shpe SPNG) UL fovudaby pw.

NQ\Q’ ‘:j‘{t%n - f SPY\”(B M, \’qu.“
\D oy |1

B






Gdtta> I 2N M T- ATAT 165

e

690< SEON>  TIFS-lud

o odjotnd to



S e T = . 3

=y




b6 pl-d

MU SHPo
ey
ook T

kP> 8% 9-
A68<

.‘

.

M
6

MNOF
“ONE-

= A
T

LT 1eS
1914






Ho- @o

{ : l -1 F
LIeY IR A0, SAE TR 8 e
S

‘J?)\U'J Ly f} 1‘__ ) D WV "\’,\ . V S
! , U
;\U-\h\.-c‘e-‘f Lool d

QO‘.U v 2004

MD S PO BCEFAY ZZ G-N N I- 2T24T 165
2 £EA< LZ-ON>  TI9Z-Lad
\/l Q. k " N - > ' s
PR Lo T Y-, Hhaw) s fie yoviheast af

VU
o \ILO (_’,-.’_:J \/l







Ho- &0
R Lhaipey fown
Howowd Coontyy , 10

;\f‘L‘\_ .‘-\i . '\\_f‘v‘{' .{_) oo ld

Odrolsr | 2004
UMD & Po
View no¥ rhaes B < Fage B A 2 oL M

Snowg lQV’dSQ&PQ oy Hhwvfe - ofy honel,
y
Yo 7



